
M e m o r a n d u m 
To:  CAPCO Board of Directors 

From:  Eden C. Harrington-Hall, Director, Consumer Directed Services 

Date:  April 20, 2018 

Subject: Board of Directors Meeting 

 

This is to inform you that a CAPCO Board of Directors meeting will be held at 12:00 

p.m. April 26, 2018 at the Main office.  

If you have any questions, or would like additional information about the Board 

packet, please call me at CAPCO - 753-6781. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Board Packet April 2018 1



Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. 
April 26, 2018 Meeting Agenda 

 

I       Call to Order  

II. Motion for Approval of the March 22, 2018 Meeting Minutes  

III. Standing Committee Reports  

 Executive Committee 
 Finance and Audit Committee !  
 Motion to Receive and File Financial Statements. 
 Resolution: 
 18 – 08 – is seeking your acceptance the CSBG Amendment. 

 
• Board Development Committee 

 Board Survey 
 Board Office Seat 

 PP& E Committee 
 HS/EHS Reports 

 Resolution: 
 18 – 09 – is seeking your acceptance the United Way Proposal. 

  
IV. Executive Director Report 
V. Program Director Reports 
             WIC 

o Family Development 
o Energy Services 
o Head Start  
o CDPAP 
o HR 

VI. Head Start Policy Council Update 
VII. Old Business  

VIII. New Business 

IX. Executive Session – If Needed 

X. Adjournment 

  

Board Packet April 2018 2



Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. 

March 22, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

I    Meeting called to order at 12:03 p.m. 

In attendance: Douglas Bentley, Ella Clark, Shelley Warnow, Shawn Allen, Mary Ann 
Discenza, Pat Snyder, Helen Spaulding, Billie MacNabb, Lynne Sypher, Larry Woolheater. 
Excused: Penny Prignon, Jeanette Dippo, Elizabeth Haskins. Absent: Ashlie Mosher 

II. Motion for Approval of the February 22, 2018 Meeting Minutes made by Ella Clark; 
seconded by Shelley Warnow.  There being no additions, or corrections motion carried.

III. Standing Committee Reports

 Executive Committee – Did not meet

 Finance and Audit Committee!  
 Bettina Liphardt from the Bonadio Group was present to discuss the preliminary

steps for the 2017 Agency Audit. 
 There being no further discussion, motion to Receive and File Financial Statements

made by Helen Spaulding; seconded by Ella Clark.  Motion carried. 
 Resolution:
 18 – 05 – is seeking your acceptance the WAP Budget.  Motion for acceptance made

by Shelley Warnow; seconded by Ella Clark.  The contract amount is for $375,000,
$50,000 more than last year.  There being no further discussion, motion carried.

• Board Development Committee
 Board Training Survey – Eden will send out a survey in order to identify areas

which we should concentrate on.
 Board Vacancy – Due to other commitments, Rama Haidara has tendered her

resignation from the Board.  This leaves an opening in the Consumer Sector of
the Board.  The Management Team has been asked to identify potential Board
members from their program area.

 PP& E Committee
 The committee reviewed the HS/EHS Reports for the month of January.
 The HS/EHS application for the program year has been submitted.
 We have been notified that we our NOEP application has been

approved.
 We have applied for $2,000 in funding through SUNY Cortland’s

Learning by Giving to support the Snack Packs for Kids initiative.
 There is a large amount of funding available through EMPOWER NY, so

we are applying for an additional $200,000.

Board Packet April 2018 3



Resolutions: 
18 – 06 – is seeking your acceptance the proposed changes to the HS/EHS ELIGIBILITY, 

RECRUITMENT, SELECTION, ENROLLMENT, AND ATTENDANCE Policy.  Motion for acceptance 
made by Lynne Sypher; seconded by Billie MacNabb.  There being no discussion, motion carried. 

18 – 07 – is seeking your acceptance the UPK Contract.  Motion for acceptance made by 
Larry Woolheater; seconded by Ella Clark.  There being no discussion, motion carried. 

 

IV. Executive Director Report 
V. Program Director Reports 
             WIC 

o Family Development 
o Energy Services 
o Head Start  
o CDPAP 
o HR 

VI. Head Start Policy Council Update 
 Larry Woolheater has volunteered to be the Board Representative to the HS/EHS Policy 

Council replacing Rama Haidara. 
 
VII. Old Business  

VIII. New Business 

IX. Executive Session – If Needed 

X. There being no further business, motion for adjournment made by Shawn Allen; 
seconded by Larry Woolheater.   Meeting adjourned at 12:48 p.m. 

Board Packet April 2018 4



Finance Committee – April 19, 2018 

Meeting called to order at 8:00 a.m.  Members Present:  Penny Prignon, Shelley Warnow, Helen 
Spaulding, Ella Clark.  Staff:  Martha Allen, Lindy Glennon 

Committee reviewed proposed CSBG Amendment Budget (see attached).  This represents the 
actual carryover ($45, ) and the 1% reduction in the original contract amount for a total 
contract for 2017-18 of  .  Changes to the budget include salary adjustments for staff in the 
Family Development component, three staff to attend the National CAP Conference, 3 staff to 
attend the NYSCAA Annual Conference, 3 staff certified as Getting Ahead Facilitators, running a 
Getting Ahead class, purchase of 3 iPads for literacy program.  Motion to approve made by Ella 
Clark, 2nd Shelley Warnow, motion carried. 

Martha reviewed the February financials and reports. 

AGENCY 
Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable are current with the exception of Medicaid 
receivables. 
We are working on the 2018 Administration, Facility, and Agency Wide Budgets. 

CDS (Consumer Directed Services) 
We received our 2018 rates from Medicaid. Our regular rate increased $0.07 per hour and 
enhanced rate increased $0.84 per hour. With these increases in rates we are estimating an 
additional $19k in revenue   We are current on CDPAP billing, we have submitted for payment 
through the payroll ending March 30, 2018.  We are working on the CDPAP 2018 Budget, it will 
be presented for review in the May meeting.  We will be working on a plan re: additional salary 
increases as well as possibility of reinstituting accrued leave for full time CDPAP staff. 

EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT 
The 2018/2019 budget for the refunding grant, approved by the Board on February 22, 2018, 
was submitted on March 1, 2018 to ACF. We received verification that our application was 
received and is being reviewed. We were notified 4/12 that our proposal for the conversion has 
not been approved. We will relook at it, consider the notes they included and plan for 
resubmission. Head Start received a $5000 grant from the CNY Community Foundation to 
purchase equipment for vision exams. 

ENERGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
On April 10, 2018, we received notification of the approval of our 2018/2019 WAP contract for 
$375,000. We have also been notified that we should anticipate an additional $75,000 for this 
WAP contract year – this will require an amendment. 

FAMILY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
On April 6, 2018, we received notification that the Healthy Families contract is approved. We 
have hired the Program Manager and interviewed for the Program Supervisor position. 

Board Packet April 2018 5



We received the 2018 CSBG amendment package. It is due on April 26, 2018. It reflects a 1% 
decrease from the current funding level.  We submitted the Dollar General Grant proposal 
requesting $15,000 in March. The United Way Grant proposal requesting $15,000 is due on 
April 18, 2018. 

WIC 
The 2018 WIC Contract began on October 1, 2017. We are projecting no surplus/loss at this 
time. Resumes are being reviewed for the vacant position. 

No further business, meeting adjourned at 8:50 a.m. 

Board Packet April 2018 6



FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

SUMMARY OF DECEMBER 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PRESENTED BY Martha Allen 

April 19, 2018 

AGENCY 

Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable are current with the exception of Medicaid receivables. 

We are working on the 2018 Administration, Facility, and Agency Wide Budgets. 

CDS (Consumer Directed Services)  

We received our 2018 rates from Medicaid.  Our regular rate increased $0.07 per hour and enhanced rate increased 

$0.84 per hour.  With these increases in rates we are estimating an additional $19k in revenue (please see chart below). 

We are current on CDPAP billing, we have submitted for payment through the payroll ending March 30, 2018. 

We are working on the CDPAP 2018 Budget, it will be presented for review in the May meeting.   

We will be working on a plan re: additional salary increases as well as possibility of reinstituting accrued leave for full 
time CDPAP staff. 

EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT  

The 2018/2019 budget for the refunding grant, approved by the Board on February 22, 2018, was submitted on March 1, 
2018 to ACF.  We received verification that our application was received and is being reviewed.  We were notified 4/12 
that our proposal for the conversion has not been approved.  We will relook at it, consider the notes they included and 
plan for resubmission.  Head Start received a $5000 grant from the CNY Community Foundation to purchase equipment 
for hearing exams.   

ENERGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT  

On April 10, 2018, we received notification of the approval of our 2018/2019 WAP contract for $375,000.  We have also 
been notified that we should anticipate an additional $75,000 for this WAP contract year – this will require an 
amendment. 

FAMILY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  

On April 6, 2018, we received notification that the Healthy Families contract is approved.  We have hired the Program 
Manager and interviewed for the Program Supervisor position.   
We received the 2018 CSBG amendment package.  It is due on April 26, 2018.  It reflects a 1% decrease from the current 
funding level.   
We submitted the Dollar General Grant proposal requesting $15,000 in March.  The United Way Grant proposal 
requesting $15,000 is due on April 18, 2018. 

WIC  
The 2018 WIC Contract began on October 1, 2017.  We are projecting no surplus/loss at this time.  Resumes are being 
reviewed for the vacant position.   

Board Packet April 2018 7



ITEM/REPORT DUE DATE FILED
Subsidiary ledgers in balance for the month? N/A yes
Bank accounts have been reconciled through? N/A Feb-18
Accounts receivable over 90 days past due N/A yes - Medicaid
Accounts payable over 90 days past due N/A none
NYS Sales and Use Tax Filing 3/21/2018 3/8/2018
FT-500  Application for Refund of Sales Tax Paid on Petroleum Products Annually 1/25/2018
Coporate Tax Returns - IRS 990 & CHAR 500 (auto-approved 6 months extension) 10/15/2018
Coporate Tax Returns - IRS 5500 (Retirement)  (auto-approved 6 month extension) 10/15/2018
Quarterly payroll tax returns filed by complete payroll qtrly yes
US Dept of Labor - Bureau of Labor Statistics - Multiple Worksite (MWR) qtrly 1/31/2018
Form 1099's 1/31/2018 1/24/2018
EO 38 Filing 6/30/2018

 CSBG 2017‐2018 py
 20% Expenditure report
45% Expenditure report
70% Expenditure report
 1st Qtr  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 1/31/2018 1/31/2018
2nd Qtr  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 4/30/2018
3rd Qtr  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 7/31/2018
4th Qtr  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 10/31/2018
3rd qtr MWBE Reports   (Oct-Dec) 1/10/2018 1/10/2018
4th qtr   MWBE Reports  (Jan-Mar) 4/10/2018 4/10/2018
1st qtr  MWBE Reports  (Apr-Jun) 7/10/2018
2nd qtr  MWBE Reports  (Jul-Sep) 10/10/2018
  Unaudited Financial Statements 11/30/2018

Energy Services

WAP 17‐18 PY
Monthly Voucher to Energy Services for presentation to DHCR Final Voucher due 4/30/2018
1st qtr MWBE Reports (April-June) 7/10/2017 7/7/2017
2nd qtr   MWBE Reports (July-September) 10/10/2017 10/10/2017
3rd qtr  MWBE Reports (October-December) 1/10/2018 1/10/2018
4th qtr  MWBE Reports (January-March) 4/10/2018 4/10/2018
 Unaudited Financial Statements 5/31/2018

Head Start & Early Head Start 
Quarterly Form 425:  Enter in Payment Management System (PMS)

1ST QTR (January - March) 4/30/2018 4/9/2018
2ND QTR (April-June) 7/30/2017 7/17/2017
3RD QTR (July-September) 10/30/2017 10/30/2017
4TH QTR (October-December) 1/30/2018 1/10/2018

Form 425 due: Upload to GRANT SOLUTIONS - 17-18 py
semi-annual  (June-November) 1/30/2018 2/15/2018
annual (June-May) 7/30/2018
final  (June-May) 8/30/2018

WIC 17‐18py
Monthly Voucher  (due 45 days after month end) Month of February 4/11/2018
1st qtr MWBE Reports (January-March) 4/10/2018 4/9/2018
2nd qtr   MWBE Reports (April to June) 7/10/2018
3rd qtr  MWBE Reports (July to September) 10/10/2018
4th qtr  MWBE Reports (October to December) 1/10/2019

Program Reports

CORTLAND COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

FINANCE DIRECTOR MONTHLY CHECKLIST

FOR THE MONTH FEBRUARY 2018

Submitted by Martha Allen on April 19, 2018

Board Packet April 2018 8



CAPCO4/17/2018  07:48:43 PM

Balance Sheet

2/28/2018 1/31/2018 12/31/2017 11/30/2017 10/31/2017

ASSETS

     CURRENT ASSETS

$823,464.25 $763,835.16 $582,696.12 $550,692.45 $697,027.22           Cash

$554,185.39 $481,630.28 $559,941.12 $485,028.24 $529,835.35           Grants Receivable

          Accounts Receivable

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE $536,088.28 $505,890.05 $585,091.74 $559,811.79 $503,075.13 

Less: ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS $54,874.00 $54,874.00 $54,874.00 $54,874.00 $54,874.00 

MEDICAID VARIANCE RECEIVABLE ($196.36) ($196.36) ($196.36) ($196.36) ($196.36)

OTHER RECEIVABLES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

OTHER RECEIVABLES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

OTHER RECEIVABLES $16,952.03 $17,058.95 $16,950.19 $16,950.19 $16,788.65 

$497,969.95 $467,878.64 $546,971.57 $521,691.62 $464,793.42           Net Accounts Receivable

$127,413.89 $92,437.36 $159,121.97 $96,474.59 $132,432.82           Prepaid Expenses

$2,003,033.48 $1,805,781.44 $1,848,730.78 $1,653,886.90 $1,824,088.81      TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

     PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

$777,664.37 $768,178.10 $766,748.69 $767,768.53 $767,126.53                Vehicles, furniture and equipment

$1,176,680.16 $1,176,680.16 $1,176,680.16 $1,176,680.16 $1,176,680.16                Building

$1,954,344.53 $1,944,858.26 $1,943,428.85 $1,944,448.69 $1,943,806.69           NET PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AT COST

($1,052,076.57) ($1,052,076.57) ($1,052,076.57) ($1,052,076.57) ($1,052,076.57)          Less Accumulated Depreciation

$902,267.96 $892,781.69 $891,352.28 $892,372.12 $891,730.12      TOTAL PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00      SOFTWARE DEVOLPMENT COSTS

$2,905,301.44 $2,698,563.13 $2,740,083.06 $2,546,259.02 $2,715,818.93 TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

          CURRENT LIABILITIES

$370,357.96 $283,479.39 $304,957.70 $98,050.82 $133,091.65                Accounts Payable

($91,393.05) ($103,515.48) ($30,201.02) $63,752.42 $226,281.11                Payroll taxes and Accruals

($22,936.34) ($22,492.34) ($22,882.34) ($62,751.77) ($62,641.20)               Other Current Liabilities

$234,792.46 $237,179.96 $239,567.46 $197,709.96 $200,097.46                Defered Income

$490,821.03 $394,651.53 $491,441.80 $296,761.43 $496,829.02           Total CURRENT LIABILITIES

$332,396.71 $333,150.68 $333,901.90 $334,677.34 $335,422.99           LONG-TERM DEBT

$823,217.74 $727,802.21 $825,343.70 $631,438.77 $832,252.01      TOTAL LIABILITIES

$2,082,083.70 $1,970,760.92 $1,914,739.36 $1,914,820.25 $1,883,566.92      NET ASSETS

$2,905,301.44 $2,698,563.13 $2,740,083.06 $2,546,259.02 $2,715,818.93 Total LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Board Packet April 2018 9



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.18 - 08 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Finance 

Committee has reviewed the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) 2017-2018  

budget amendment in the amount of $387,843 which includes $110,523 in in-kind donations 

and has recommended accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the CSBG budget and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on April 26, 2018 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the CSBG budget for the 2017-2018 program year. 

  _________________ 

President 

  ________________ 

Date 

W 

W 

I

Board Packet April 2018 10



CAPCO
10/1/17-9/30/18 FAMILY DEVELOPMENT CSBG GRANTS

LINE ITEM
 Proposed Budget 

Amendment 

17.18CSBG - 2017-2018 CSBG

REVENUE

     GRANT REVENUE
GRANT REVENUE 231,760$  
Prior Year Revenue 45,560$  

     Total GRANT REVENUE 277,320$  

     OTHER REVENUE
INKIND DONATIONS 110,523$  

     Total OTHER REVENUE 110,523$  

Total REVENUE 387,843$  

EXPENSES
     PERSONNEL
          SALARIES/WAGES
SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 112,181$  
NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 7,879$  

          Total SALARIES/WAGES 120,060$  

          FRINGES
FICA EXPENSE 8,826$  
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 3,491$  
WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 1,007$  
DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 291$  
GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 10,845$  
401-K EXPENSE 3,313$  
Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 941$  

          Total FRINGES 28,714$  

     Total PERSONNEL 148,774$  

     OTHER THAN PERSONNEL
PROGRAM MATERIALS 2,612$  
PROGRAM SUPPLIES 1,322$  
OFFICE SUPPLIES 757$  

Direct Beneficiary Costs 18,240$  

FOOD & FOOD SUPPLIES 263$  
VEHICLE INSURANCE 1,927$  

CSBG-FEB-2018 CSBG

Board Packet April 2018 11



LINE ITEM
 Proposed Budget 

Amendment 

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,278$                                  
VEHICLE FUEL (4)$                                       
VEHICLE REGISTRATION 200$                                     
PARKING LOT RENTAL 843$                                     
BOARD EXPENDITURES 4,130$                                  
POSTAGE 200$                                     
DUPLICATING & PRINTING 853$                                     
INTERNET SERVICE 505$                                     
TELEPHONE 853$                                     
Computer & Software Expense 5,583$                                  
MEETING EXPENSE 1,362$                                  

CONFERENCE EXPENSE 5,374$                                  

Staff Development 2,028$                                  
LOCAL TRAVEL 606$                                     
OUT OF TOWN TRAVEL 11,832$                                

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 4,050$                                  

ADVERTISING 550$                                     
BUILDING ALLOCATION 38,918$                                

     Total OTHER THAN PERSONNEL 104,284$                              

     CONTRACTUAL
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 4,000$                                  

     Total CONTRACTUAL 4,000$                                  

     INKIND
VOLUNTEERS/INTERNS 6,940$                                  
INKIND DONATIONS 103,583$                              

     Total INKIND 110,523$                              

     ADMINISTRATION
FINANCIAL AUDIT 1,400$                                  
PAYROLL PROCESSING 502$                                     
ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOCATION 18,361$                                

     Total ADMINISTRATION 20,263$                                

Total EXPENSES 387,843$                              

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (0)$                                       

CSBG-FEB-2018 CSBG

Board Packet April 2018 12



Board Development 

April 17, 2018 

In attendance: Larry Woolheater, Jeanette Dippo. Absent: Pat Snyder, Ashlie Mosher.  Staff: 
Eden Harrington-Hall 

Meeting to order at 8:45 a.m. 

Board Self-Assessment 

Eden shared the results of the Board Self-Assessment.  There was a lot of valuable feedback 
from 8 respondents.  Eden will send out the survey again to see if we can get input from those 
who haven’t had a chance to do the survey.  One of the questions in the survey was in regards 
to fundraising done by the Board and Jeannette stated she has a lot of resources on fundraising 
and will forward that information to Eden. 

Board Officer Seat 

With Rama’s resignation we need to fill the Secretary position.  The committee discussed a 
couple of possibilities, and ultimately decided to ask the full Board if anyone would be 
interested in serving. 

Board Vacancy 

Brandy Strauf has identified a former GED student as a potential new Board member.  She has 
been given the application packet and we hope she can meet with the committee next month.  
The committee also identified other potential candidates which include Nancy Hatch, Rachel 
Ditch, Vicki Johnson and Doug Hatch.  It would be nice to have applications on file for interested 
individuals, so we can fill slots quicker. 

There being no further business, motion for adjournment made by Larry Woolheater; seconded 
by Jeanette Dippo.  Meeting adjourned at 9:45 a.m. 

Board Packet April 2018 13



PP&E Committee 

April 17, 2018 

Meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. 

In attendance: Billie MacNabb, Liz Haskins, Lynne Sypher. Excused: Doug Bentley; Shawn Allen.  
Staff: Lindy Glennon, Eden Harrington-Hall 

HS/EHS Reports for February 

HS Family Services – attendance was at 92% and we only have 2 income eligible children on the waiting 
list. 

We received notification that our Conversion was not approved at this time and we were asked for 
additional information.  We were notified that since the percentage was too high with our request 
being over 10% the Regional Office automatically sends it to the Federal level who is not approving 
any request at this time. There does not seem to be too much emphasis on not being totally enrolled 
if the program is not considered “chronically under enrolled”.  

HS Special Needs – 49 children are receiving services 26% of the 191 children currently enrolled. 

HS Mental Health – 12 Children are receiving services.  This year has been a very difficult year with the 
number of children who are receiving services and the amount of behavioral issues we are currently 
experiencing.  Although some of the children would be better suited for the Racker Center, they have a 
large waiting list.  It was suggested to possibly use RSVP as a resource to have volunteers in the 
classrooms to help possibility alleviate some of the stress on teachers.  We used to use RSVP, but the 
regulations had changed at some point, so we were no longer able to utilize RSVP.  Liz will check on this 
to see if this is still the case. 

EHS Family Services – attendance is at 90% with 82 income eligible children on the wait list. 

EHS Special Needs – 9 children are receiving services which is 13% of the 71 children currently enrolled. 

EHS Mental Health – 12 children to date have been observed for developmental behaviors. 

Motion to recommend the HS/EHS reports to the full Board made by Lynne Sypher; seconded by Liz 
Haskins.  Motion carried. 

United Way Proposal 

We have applied for $15,000 in funding to support the Literacy Program.  Motion to recommend the 
proposal to the full Board made by Larry Woolheater; seconded by Lynne Sypher.  Motion carried. 

Healthy Families 

We finally received the contract for the grant.  To date we have hired the Manager – Deanna Pace 
formally a WIC staff person.  Since we were so late in receiving the contract, we most likely won’t serve 
participants until August.  All the staff will have to have intensive training in the interim.  The good news 
is they don’t prorate the contract.  We will also be utilizing the space next door currently being occupied 
by FCS and we plan to move in around July. 

Board Packet April 2018 14



Getting Ahead 

We will be starting up the Getting Ahead classes during this contract period using CSBG funds.  During 
the ARRA years we were able to provide this valuable curriculum and we saw a lot of success with the 
students who participated in the 16 week instruction period.  In addition, Mayor Tobin is optimistic that 
we will be awarded the Alliance for Economic Inclusion (AEI) funding which was earmarked for the 
Getting Ahead classes. 

CNY Community Foundation 

We were awarded funding from the Community Foundation to purchase the vision screening equipment 
to be used in the HS/EHS classrooms as well for the use to the broader community. 

Learning by Giving 

We are a finalist for the Learning by Giving grant opportunity.  We hope to hear back soon. 

Claudia Tenney 

Claudia Tenney is scheduled to visit the agency on Monday April 23rd.  She will be attending the 
Chamber of Commerce then plans to visit the agency.  Unfortunately, it is Spring Break so HS/EHS is not 
in session and the Family Essentials room is not open on Mondays. 

There being no further business, motion for adjournment made by Liz Haskins; seconded by Billie 
MacNabb.  Meeting adjourned at 12:55 p.m. 

Board Packet April 2018 15



Board Packet April 2018 16



Board Packet April 2018 17



Board Packet April 2018 18



Board Packet April 2018 19



Board Packet April 2018 20



Board Packet April 2018 21



Board Packet April 2018 22



Board Packet April 2018 23



Board Packet April 2018 24



Board Packet April 2018 25



Board Packet April 2018 26



Board Packet April 2018 27



Board Packet April 2018 28



Board Packet April 2018 29



Board Packet April 2018 30



Board Packet April 2018 31



Board Packet April 2018 32



Board Packet April 2018 33



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.18 - 09 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. PP&E Committee 

has reviewed the United Way proposal in the amount of $15,000 to support the 

Literacy Program and has recommended accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the proposal and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on April 26, 2018 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the United Way proposal. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

 

 

 

  

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet April 2018 34



Board Packet April 2018 35



Executive Director Report                     April 26, 2018 
Highlights for the month: 
 

• Claudia Tenney has rescheduled her planned visit with CAPCO.  She will now be here on 
Monday, April 23.  Her plans include a breakfast meeting hosted by the Chamber of Commerce 
at 8:00 and the tour with CAPCO at 11:00.  We are making plans now – we think we’ll have her 
start at the Main Office then a stop at our S. Main site to see the classrooms, Healthy Families 
space, etc.  Unfortunately, with this change, there will be no children in the classrooms as it’s 
spring break.   
 

• Congratulations to Brandy Strauf.  She has been selected to receive the Leadership in Civic 
Engagement Award from SUNY Cortland.  This is in recognition of her many contributions to the 
community.   
 

• Brandy Strauf, Joyce Allen and I attended a certification training to be certified at Getting Ahead 
facilitators.  We plan to start a group before the end of the current CSBG contract.  If we get the 
Alliance for Economic Inclusion, Getting Ahead is written into that grant and we will have 4 
certified facilitators to get us started. 
 

• We are upgrading the light fixtures at the Main Office – the upgrades will be LED lighting.  We 
are currently seeing ballasts consistently burning out.  Upgrading the lighting will be a better use 
of funds and will also be energy efficient lighting.   

 
• We have recently moved our phone/internet services to Firstlight and will be closing service 

with TWC/Spectrum.  We are eligible to get phone/internet services partially reimbursed 
through E-Rate – changes to that program mean that the majority of the reimbursement is 
available for programs using fiber/VOIP services.  The change will mean we will get a higher 
reimbursement and also provide better service.   
 

• We are very happy that we have an executed contract for the Healthy Families program.  We 
have hired the Program Manager, ready to make an offer for the Program Supervisor and are 
looking at resumes for the Family Support workers.  We will be housing that program in the site 
across the driveway at N. Main (used to be Sciarabba Walker offices, currently leased by Family 
Counseling Services (FCS)).  FCS is moving to the Crescent Commons building.  We hope to be in 
that site by July 1. 
 

• CAPCO hosted a meeting with Habitat for Humanity with partners in the community to discuss 
opportunities and projects that could address the issue of properties in the community that 
need to be rehabbed/renovated.  Mayor Brian Tobin, Rich Cunningham (THOMA), Aaron Baier 
(ATI – coordinates the Housing Consortium group in Cortland), Shawna Grinnell (CHAC), 
Shannon MacCarrick and Jean Rightmire (Habitat) met to discuss opportunities and priorities.  
There is a successful program in Dutchess County using the same collaboration model that we 
are looking to get more information and direction from to determine how to move this forward.   

  

Board Packet April 2018 36



WIC Monthly Report  
April 20, 2018 

 
• We have received almost 150 applications for the WIC clerk position.  I am almost done sorting 

through them and hope to schedule interviews the first week of May. 
• Until that position is filled and the new person trained, I will be spending most of my time in 

clinic. 
• I will be in Chicago for the National WIC Association tomorrow until Wednesday.  I have never 

been to the National conference so I am looking forward to it and to talking to people from 
states that have already switched to the Electronic Benefits WIC card. 

• We are still on schedule to switch to the new system.  The pilots in the Albany region are 
scheduled to begin at the end of this month. 

• When we switch over to the new system we will be able to provide absolutely no WIC services 
for a week and limited services for the week before the transition and the month after.  We are 
starting to educate participants now, especially those that are expecting a baby around that 
time and I am working on a plan to inform community partners. 

• Cortland Regional Medical Center arranged for a lunch at our office to introduce us to the new 
Family Practice physician who will be working with the local midwife.  It was a great opportunity 
to find out more about her.  I think we should try to plan similar things with other physicians. 

• There is a budget meeting for WIC scheduled for May.  I am guessing we will find out our 
funding information for next year then and budgets will be due in June.  We are hoping for flat 
funding with the COLA from the state restored. 

  

Board Packet April 2018 37



Family Development                     April 2018 

• We have a Health Families Contract! We were informed that the Bureau of 
Contract Management approved our contract on April 6.  

•  Lindy, Brandy and Deanna completed a site visit with the OCFS contract 
managers on 3/29/18. The meeting was informative and helped us to 
prioritize steps moving forward. 

• Healthy Families Program Supervisor interviews are complete and we will 
be making a job offer this week.  

• We have posted the position of Family Support Specialist. We are looking to 
hire two at this time and two after the program is up and running.  We are 
scheduling interviews the May.  

• Deanna Pace, HF Program Manager completed her first round of Healthy 
Families training.  

• Brandy, Lindy, and Joyce completed Getting Ahead in a just getting by 
world facilitator training. We now have four trained facilitators. We are 
hoping to start a Getting Ahead class in the fall.  

• We submitted our United Way grant proposal on April 19. We are asking for 
$15,000 to continue adult education programing.  

• We have been informed that we are a finalist for the SUNY Cortland 
Learning by Giving grant. A group of students came in to see the program 
and ask questions.   

• Our annual Pajama Party that gives low-income children a new pair of 
pajamas and a book is scheduled for May 23.  

• On April 22, a group of SUNY Cortland students volunteered to clean Family 
Essentials through their annual “Big Event”.  

• Staff have been cleaning their areas and creating displays to showcase the 
work that we do for Claudia Tenney’s visit.  

  

 

                                                               

 

Board Packet April 2018 38



 
 
  

Board Packet April 2018 39



Energy Services 
Directors Report 

 
April 2018 

 
 

 
• WAP 18.19 -    We have begun our new contract for $375,000.   HCR 

has told us to prepare for an amendment soon for additional money of 
$400,000 to $450,000.  With the expansion and commitment of money 
from NYSERDA our production will average about 7 units a month and 5 
units a month for WAP.   We have hired 2 new crew laborers who will start 
in May.            
 

• EmPower NY-   8- HP audits have been completed.                    
 

• AO Smith water tanks- no activity            
 
• RESTORE- Received notice that we were not awarded this round of 

funding.     
 
• HEAP- HERR program-   No activity.         

 
• Energy Savers-   No activity.    

 
• Meetings & Training-      

     
 

• Building Maintenance-  
 

o North Main facility- All the fluorescent bulbs will be removed and new 
LED’s and ballast will be installed this will be done in conjunction with a 
National Grid rebate.   
 
     

 
  

Board Packet April 2018 40



CDS (Consumer Directed Services) 
April 2018 

 
Current caseload is 95 but is growing daily and I’m looking forward to fill the Medicaid Billing 
Specialist which will be responsible for Medicaid billing for both Medicaid as well as the 
Volunteer Driver Program.   
 
I am very excited that our Medicaid reimbursement went up and I’m looking forward to looking 
at salary increases as well as possibly reinstituting accrued leave for full-time employees. 
 
We currently have 4 applications for the Volunteer Driver Program, so we are just going to go 
ahead and get it started.  Mike from MAS will be meeting with us shortly to go over what needs 
to occur and we are also in contact with Cayuga Seneca Community Action who has the 
Volunteer Driver Program and they have software which was developed for them and they are 
willing to share the software with CAPCO (for a cost). 
  

Board Packet April 2018 41



HR Board Report 
April 2018 

 
 

• Ongoing Recruitment: Recruitment continues to be a predominant focus for the CAPCO 
Human Resources Department in 2018. As reported in previous Board reports, HR is 
partnering with each department as Programs expand and opportunities arise for internal 
staff movement and advancement. While HR continues to use standard external posting 
tools/resources that are proven to be effective, individualized connections have now been 
made with our local Department of Labor/CareerWorks as well as contacts with SUNY 
Cortland and Tompkins Cortland Community College department chairs/career service 
coaches. To keep the Board updated, the following positions are currently being recruited 
for or in the onboarding process: 

o Family Development, Healthy Families 
 Program Supervisor: HR and the Family Development department is 

excited to welcome the internal advancement of Deanna Pace into the 
Healthy Families Program Manager position from her longstanding position 
with CAPCO’s WIC Program. With this, Deanna has been transitioning out 
of WIC into Healthy Families, with the official transition to full-time 
Healthy Families scheduled for April 30, 2018. Deanna has been an integral 
part of the recruitment process for the Program Supervisor positon, which 
will have the direct supervision responsibilities of the Program’s Family 
Support Specialist. HR led the recruitment efforts with the 
selection/interview process completed by Deanna and the Family 
Development Director, Brandy Strauf. Through the recruitment process for 
both the Program Manager and Program Supervisor, numerous external 
candidates with one internal candidate were interviewed. With HR’s 
guidance, Brandy and Deanna are in the final stages of checking references 
in anticipation of making an offer of employment by the week ending 
4/27/18. 

 Family Support Specialists: As the leadership positions are filled for the 
new Healthy Families Program, the posting period for the Family Support 
Specialist home visiting positions ended the week of 4/16/18. HR has led 
this recruitment effort and completed the preliminary review of 
applicants/resumes for these front-line positions. While the Program will 
ultimately employ 4 Family Support Specialists, the Program will begin 
with 2 workers as the Program’s caseload builds. HR conducted a limited-
run post as the Program maintained numerous viable resumes from the 
posting periods for the Program Manager and Program Supervisor. 

o Women, Infants, Children (WIC) 
 WIC Clerk: With Deanna Pace’s transition to the Healthy Families 

Program, the WIC Program worked with HR in the posting of the WIC 
Clerk position. The position was posted the first week of April with the 
intention for a 2-week posting period. Due the high volume of applicants, 
the posting was cut-short with over 150 applicants. The office and entry-

Board Packet April 2018 42



level/clerical nature of the position saw this position have high interest from 
external candidates, which was anticipated. HR is working with the 
Program to go through these applicants and identify selections for 
interviews as Deanna continues her transition and the second WIC Clerk 
learns adjusts duties for the interim.  

o Energy Services 
 Crew Laborers (2): CAPCO’s Energy Services department is adding 2 

additional general Crew Laborer positions with the anticipated increase in 
NYSERDA work and a funding source budget increase. HR began 
recruitment for these positions the first week of April and worked with the 
Program in identifying candidates. The Program had interest from former 
employees during the ARRA (American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
of 2009) period that were laid-off following the end of the funding increase 
period. The department conducted interviews and HR is working with the 
candidates to complete the onboarding process.   

 
• Wellness Committee: HR continues to lead the CAPCO Employee Wellness Committee 

with the start of our Spring initiative, the 2018 Relay for Life. Efforts for the Relay for Life 
include entering the Cortland event scheduled for June 16, 2018 as the CAPCO Crew. Our 
team is starting our fundraising efforts which include: Agency Bake Sales, bottle and can 
drives, basket raffles, and relay receptacles. In 2017, the CAPCO Crew was the highest 
fundraising team in Cortland County, and we look forward to defending this feat as the 
fight against cancer is deeply connected to our staff. The Relay has become an initiative 
that is embedded in the CAPCO culture with high staff involvement whether it be a Relay 
team member of a fundraising contributor.  
 

• 2018 Spring All-Staff Day: HR has organized a committee that is representative of all 
departments including both management and non-management staff. The Spring All-Staff 
Day will be the last day of the Head Start Program Year, 6/22/2018 and will include 
designated professional development trainings, employee safety trainings, and interactive 
activities to engage staff in meaningful team building and Agency education. This training 
day will also serve as a celebration of the accomplishments of the year and honor our staff 
who have achieved years-of-service milestones. The committee is in the initial stage of 
“brainstorming” all phases of the day with consideration of Management agenda items for 
the day.  
 

• Tompkins Cortland Community College Opportunity: Through a personal and 
professional connection, I was invited to come teach a few classes for the HR Law and Job 
Readiness sections of the Hospitality and Tourism track at the end of March. The 
experience was rewarding to work with the students as they develop into the workforce. 
During my time at the college, I was able to speak with key leaders in academic major 
departments to identify meaningful ways to connect to students and alum, particularly as 
they relate to the Programs and positions we recruit for here at CAPCO. I have already 
utilized these connections in the aforementioned recruitment efforts, and I look forward to 
working more with higher education to develop our community’s future workforce and 
draw connections to the talent pool CAPCO will continue to recruit and employ.  

Board Packet April 2018 43


	April 2018 Finance Committee Package.pdf
	FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT - April 2018 Meeting_February 2018 Financials_reviewed by Lindy
	2018 Finance Director Monthly Checklist-submit to Finance Committee_April Meeting
	aged ar
	aged ap
	balance sheet 2.28.2018
	ADM-FEB-2018
	BLDG-FEB-2018
	MEDICAID-FEB-2018
	ECD-FEB-2018_policy council
	ESD-FEB-2018
	CSBG-FEB-2018
	WIC-FEB-2018




